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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The trustees who are alse directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their report with
the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 August 2020. The trustees have adopted the provisions of
Accounting and Reporting by Charities; Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts i accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand (FRS 102)
{effective 1 January 2019} and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

QObjectives and aims

The principal object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom,
in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school, offering a broad range of
curriculum for pupils of different abilities.

The principal object and activity of the Charitable Company is the operation of Hereford Marches Federation of
Academies to provide free education and care for pupils of different abilities between the ages of Z and 11,

The airms of the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2020 are summarised below:
to continue to raise the standard of educational attainment and achievement of all pupils,
ta provide a broad and balanced curriculum, including extra-curricular activities.
te develop students as more effective learners.
to develop the Academy sites so that it enables students to achieve their full potential.
to ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care.
to improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under
continual review,
to provide value for money for the funds expended.
to develop greater coherence, clarity and effectiveness in school systems.
to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements.
to develop the Academy’s capacity to manage change, and
to conduct the Academy's business in accardance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and openness.
to manage the coronavirus cutbreak in terms of Heaith & Safety requirements, adhering to government
guidelines re! School closures and provision for pupils of key workers, facilitating home learning for pupils and
remote working for staff.

At HWFA we aim to get the best for, and from, each child. We intend to enable each child to realise his or her full
academic, creative and physical potential and to develop positive social and morat values. Our Academy is a community
in which children, staff and parents should be part of a happy and caring environment.

Ob]ectwes Strategies and Activities
To maintain Qutstanding provision at Kings Capte and sutton and 5t Weonards
To strive for Outstanding at Lord Scudamore
To ensure the progress of all groups of pupils in our care remains high.
To continue to develop sur curricutum. To provide pupils with a bread and balanced curriculum and provide
opportunitias beyond the National Curricuium, such as Forest Schoot activities
To ensure the use of technology is integrated into our curriculum.,
To develop strategies which will enable pupits to catch-up on lost teaching time disrupted by Coronavirus
outbreak
To continue to adapt School working practices to comply with Government Guidelines to ensure the safety of
staff and pupils during the Coronavirus outbreak

Key prorities for the year for core curriculum areas are contained in the Strategic Development Plans which are
available from each school.

Public benefit

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard
to the Charity Caommissioner's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties.
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Herefordshire marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 Ausust 2020

ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMAMNCE
Charitable activities

Kings Caple Lord Scudamore Sutten
Pupil Achievement Qutstanding Good Outstanding
Quality of Teaching Cutstanding Good Qutstanding
Behaviour and Safety Cutstanding Good QOutstanding
Leadership and Management Cutstanding Cutstanding Outstanding
St Weonards
Pupil Achievement Cutstanding
Quality of Teaching Outstanding
Behaviour and Safety Qutstanding
Leadership and Management Cutstanding

All schools have taken part in shared Federatfon Olympics, dance and gymnastics events in previous years, but the
laockdawn caused suspension of these activities.

TFeachers have received training in Developing Reasoning in Mathematics, TalkdWriting and Talk4Reading as well as a
wide variety of "respansibility specific” training, The Intent, Implementation and impact plans are in place.

The Covid-19 pandemic has created the following priorities:

Upgrade of ICT equipment (especially that of teachers)
implementation of Google Classroom as the vehicle for remote learning

Sepior staff have been involved in managing the performance of staff and mentoring NQTs despite the pandemic,
however, many targets have been rolled forward.

There have been no progress results for 2020, We have made baseline assessments on return to school,

A Recovery Curriculum Action Plan is in place which outlines strategies to re-engage pupils with their learning since the
disruption caused by Covid-19.

Fundraising activities
There were a wide range of charitable fundraising activities,

Key performance indicators
Key performance indicators are included throughout the report.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Acadernies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial position

Majority of the Academy’s income is obtained from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which
is restricied to particular purposes, The grangs received from the DfE during the year ended 31 August 2020 and the
associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE and these are shown in the Statement of financiat
Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual
depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as defined in the Academy's accounting pelicies.

At 31 August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets was £4,726,232 (2019: £3,838,736 and movements in tangible fixed
assets are shown in the notes to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and
the associated support services ta the puplis of the Academy.

During the year ended 31 August 2020, total expenditure of £3,217,892 (2019: £3,092,804) was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the DfE. The excess of income aver expenditure for the year {excluding restricted fixed asset and
pension funds} was £111,122 (2019 £22,623)

The land ang buildings for Lord Scudamore School were transferred to the Academy upon conversion in June 2011, Land
and buildings for Sutton & Kings Caple Schools were transferred on a 125yr lease.

The ESFA provided a tand and buildings valuation as at 31st August 2012 for the purpases of completing the WGA return,
Lord Scudamore was valued at £1,926,64B, Sutton at £1,513,964 and Kings Caple at £544,054.

The Local Authority provided a tand and buildings valuation as at 31 March 2019 for St Weonards Primary School of
£1,038,000,

The Academy has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non-teaching staff
transferred on conversion. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity with details in the
notes to the financial statements.

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year include the Finance Policy and the Financial Delegation
Scheme 2018 which lay out the framework for financial management, inctuding financial resporsibilities of the Board,
CEQ, Accounting Dfficer, Finance staff and budget holders, as well as delegated authority for spending.

fnvesitment policy and ebjectives

Due to the nature of funding, the Academy may at times hold cash balances surplus to its short term reguirements. The
Directors have authorised the opening of additional short term bank investment accounts to take advantage of higher
interest rates. No other form of investment is authorised.

Reserves policy

The Directors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Directors take into
consideration the future plans of the Acadery, the uncertainty over future income streams and other key risks identified
during the risk review. The Academy’s current levet of reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and
restricted funds) is £500,198 {2019; £422,878), all of which is free reserves. The level of general restricted reserves is
£130,022 (2019: £128,332}).

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

HMFA Board of Directors regularly review [ong term plans to ensure the future financial stability of the Trust. Thare are

no concerns that the Trust will face any financial difficulties over the next 3 years. The Directors have considered the
potential affects of Covid19 in their assessment.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Please see HMFA Strategic plan and curriculum recevery plan

Core Purposes

- Ensure that all children are protected from harm; both physically and emotionally.

- Provide the highest guality of education so that every child achieves their full potential, both academically as
wall as in artistic and sporting endeavour.

- Ensure that vulnerable and disadvantaged children receive the support they need to achieve their full potential.

- Ensure that children are equipped to cope with the pressures of life including effective management of social
media.

- Enable ¢hildren to make the best use of technology without allowing it to take over their lives,

Key Priorities

- Ensuring high quality teaching and learning

- Ensure that all teachers are using Basic Skills English and Maths, Tatk4Writing, Talk4Reading and Developing
Reasoning in Maths,

- Ensure that assessment is a dialogue between teacher and child which maves learning forward.

- Provide high quality intervention in the Early Years to address speech and language issues; particularly the
deficit in vocabulary for disadvantaged children.

- To provide intervention and support for older children o minimise the vocabutary gap.

Developing the creative curriculum
- Ensure that every opportunity to further enhance the already very creative curriculum is taken.
- Review the current curriculum and implement the Intent, Implementation and fmpact Plans.

Strengthen leadership

- Ensure that all Senior Leaders have a good understanding of financia! systems and are engaged in the setting of
balanced budgets.

- Develop strategic awareness for Heads of Scheol.

- Develop the work scrutiny cycle for Trustees and Local Advisory Body Members.

- Support the newly appointed Head Teacher at Sutton.

Ensure clear accountability and highly effective communication

- Ensure that Heads of School contribute to the Heads Report as the key accountability document for  Trustees
and Local Advisory Body members.

- Ensure that progress data is available each term for ali groups of children.

- Ensure that Senior Leaders meet regularly and that communication is effective between the leadership team
and with all stakeholders.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust was incorporated on 25th March 2011 and opened as an Academy on 1st June 2011 is a company
limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's Memarandum and Articles of Association are
the primary governing docurnents of the Academy Trust,

The Directors act as the Trustees for the charitabie activities of Hereford Marches Federation of Academies and are also
the directors of the Charftable Company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as HMFA,

HMFA is & charitable company and is responsible for the strategic direction of the Academies within the HMFA MAT. It
has 2 layers of governance: Members of the Trust and the Board of Directors,

Details of the Directors who served throughout the period, except as noted, are included in the Reference and
Administration Details on page 1.

Members’ Hability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease {0 be a member.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 Aygust 2020

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Trustees’ Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust's expense o cover the liability of the
Directors which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negiligence, default or
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust, provided that any such
insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a breach of trust
or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckiess disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or
breach of duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the cests of any unsuccessful defence
to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their capacity as Trustees of the Academy Trust. The limit of
this indemnity is £dmitlion.

Principal activities
The principal activity is to advance for the public benefit by maintaining, managing and developing primary schools
offering a broad and balanced curriculum,

Recruitment and appointment of new trustees
The Academy's Governing Body {Board of Trustees) comprises the CEQ, 3 Members, 2 Member Trustees and 5 Trustess.

When appointing new Trustees, consideration is given to the skills and experience mix of existing Trustees in order to
ensure that the Board has the necessary skills set to contribute fully to the Academy's development. The Board comprises
of Trustees primarily elected by the Members.

Organisational structure
The Board of Trustees meets once each term,

The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of the Academy Trust and determines membership,
terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It receives reports including policies from its
Committees for ratification. It monitars the activities of the Committees through the minutes of their meetings. The
Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.

The HMFA Scheme of Delegation has been developed to clarify the responsibilities and powers of Memhers, Trustees,
CEO, Chairman and Local Advisory Boards in respect of key aspects of the management of the Trust and its Academies,
and to ensure compliance with tegal requirements.

The Members and Board of Trustees have devolved responsibility for day to day management of the Academy to the CEQ
and Senior Leadership Team (SLT). The SLT comprises the CEQ, Heads of Scheool, Finance Director, HR Director and
Company Secretary, Director of Safeguarding, Director of SEND, and Director of IT and DPC. The 5LT implement the
policies laid down by the Board of Trustees and report back to them on performance. The aim of the leadership structure
is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvernent in decision making at all levels

The Academy Trust comprises four primary schools - Lord Scudamore, Sutton, Kings Caple and 5t Weonards. Each schoot
has its own Local Adyvisory Body who accepts reports relating to their school, staff and pupils. Please refer to the MAT
Scheme of Delegation for detait of key areas of responsibility.

CEQ; Peter Box is the Accounting Officer.

The Directors of the subsidiary company HMFA Enterprises Ltd meet once a term. They review and approve the annual
budget plan, policies, pricing structure and are responsible for day-to-day management. Strategic and staffing decisions
are made in accordance with HMFA Scheme of Delegation.

Induction and training of new trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would always
include an invitation to tour the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided with an
induction pack which is now available on Governor Hub for reference when required. Governor Quality Assurance days
are held for Trustees and Local Advisory Body members where they visit the schools and involves work scrutiny, tatking
to pupils, tearning walks and observations

Our annual review of Governance provides an opportunity for Trustees to highlight any training requirements they feel

would be of benefit to them, Trustees and Local Advisory Body members are encouraged to register with Activate
Centrat Ltd and enrol on relevant courses to support their role.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Key management remuneration
Performance pay review is completed by the HMFA pay review committee, comprising 5 elected Trustees.

2 Performance Management in each school takes place on an annual cycle of review. It is undertaken by the
senior teaders, Deputy Head teachers and Head teacher.

3. Targets are related to current school key areas as well as individual targets and are linked to the new teacher
standards.

4. Staff underperforming are given clear agreed targets with appropriate timescale for review, and a mentor from
the leadership team.

Trade Union Facility Time

This infarmation is published in accordance with the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication
Requirements} Regulations 2017 because the academy trust had a full-time equivalent number of staff of more than
49 throughout the entirety of any seven months within the accounting pericd.

The multi-acadermy trust has an SLA to cover trade union services,

Related parties
The Acaderny Trust has wider federation links with 5 other primary schools; Canon Pyon CE Academy, Llangrove CE
Academy, Marden Primary Academy, Pencombe {ofE Primary School and Clehonger CofE Primary School.

HMEA MAT CEQ Peter Box is Executive Head Teacher at Canon Pyon CE Academy, Llangrove CE Academy and Clehonger
CofE Primary School via a Service Level Agreement.

Exec Head of St Weonards Academy Maggi Newton is also Head Teacher at Marden Primary Academy & Pencombe CofE
Primary School.

Through the HMFA collaboration agreement all schools benefit from the use of shared expertise, staffing, resources and
group purchasing discounts.

Refated Party transactions are disctosed to ESFA via DfE Sign-In portal and where applicable requests for approval are
submitted. During 19/20 these regulations did not apply to income transactions,

Retated Party Relationships have heen recorded on a Register of Trustees Declarations of Interest and any additional
declarations noted at the start of each Board of Trustees Meeting. The following companies have been identified as
having a Related Party Relationship with HMFA; Canon Pyon CE Academy, Llangrove CE Academy, Marden Primary
Academy, Clehonger CofE Primary Schoot, Pencombe C of £ Primary School and HMFA Enterprises Ltd.

Refated Party Agreements are reviewed and approved by Trustees annually prior to commencement of the
service/contract.

FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Directors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to its finances,
teaching, facilities and other operationat areas through the Risk Register, reviewed July 2018 {a working document).
The Directors have implemented a number of systems to assess and minimise those risks, including internal controls
described elsewhere. Where significant financial risk stilt remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance
cover.

Lord Scudamore pupit numbers are declining due to demographic factors and the birth rates in 2014 and 2015. 1t is alse
important to remember that the real terms freeze on Government's overall education budget, changes in funding
arrangements for special educational needs and increasing employment and premises costs mean that budgets will be
increasingly tight in coming years.

The reduction in funding will be managed by restructuring leadership across the HMFA,

The Directors examine the financial health formally every term, reviewing performance against budgets and overall
expenditure by means of regular update reports at all full Directors’ and Finance Committee meetings,

At the year end, the Academy had no significant Habilities arising from trade creditors or debtors where there would be
a significant effect on ligquidity,
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Repart of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

Financial - the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA, In the last year
93% of the Academy's incoming resources was ultimately Government funded and whilst this level is expected to
continue, there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will
continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

Financial - HMFA Board of Directors recognises that the defined benefit scheme deficit (Local Government Pension
scheme), which is set out in the notes to the financial statements, represents a significant potential liability. Due to
the deficit position of the LGPS valuation August 2014, the Academy faces concerns about the cost of future lump sum
deficit contributions which may he imposed.

At this point in time the Academy is able to meet the set LGPS annual contributions; however the Board are aware there
will be revisions of Employer rates in the future. The Board has relevant skill set to inform Directors of policy and impact
of the LGPS,

Failures in governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively manage the
Academy's finances, internat controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns, etc. The Directors
continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks.

Reputational - the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient
numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk Directors ensure that student success
and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed,

Safeguarding and child protection - the Directors continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the
areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of ¢hild protection policies and procedures, health & safety
and discipline. Relevant staff receive safer recruitment training and all staff receive relevant safeguarding training,
including Prevent, and are issued with relevant documents.

Staffing - the success of the Academy is retiant on the quality of its staff and so the Directors monitor and review policies
and procedures to ensure continued development and traifning of staff as well as ensuring there is clear succession
planning.

The MAT follows the STPCD and local policy guidelines. Any significant government [egislative changes to teachers pay
and conditions will therefore have an impact.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - The Academy has appointed an Internal Auditor to carry out checks on financial
systems and records as required by the Academy Financial Handbook. Internal control pracedures are in place to
minimise risks of fraud.

AUDITORS
In so far &s the Directors are aware:

there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's auditor is unaware; and
the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The auditars, Thorne Widgery Accountants, are willing to continue in office and a resclution to appoint them will be
proposed at the annual general meeting.

Trustees Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors on
....... VEUEA UL, and signed on the boards behalf by:

b

C M Hayes - Trdstee
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academiss

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Hereferdshire Marches Federation of
Academies has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system i3
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance agafnst material misstatement or 10ss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Trust has delegated the day-te-day responsibility to the CEQ /Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls
conform with the reguirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between HMFA and the Secretary of State for
Fducation. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
cantrol.

The Trustees consider that the Board and its Commitiees combined, meet adequately and regularly over the course of
the year in order to discharge their responsibilities and have robust and effective management arrangements.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the
Trustees' Responsibilities Statement. The Board of Trustees has formally met once and atso had a Zoom meeting during
the year.  The Spring term meeting did not take place due to Covid closure. Attendance during the year at meetings
of the Board of Trustees was as fotlows:

Meatings Out of a
Trustee Attended possible
Prebendary R North (member & director) Chair {Resigned 17.7.20} 2 2
P Box CEQ/Accounting Officer 2 2
D Greenough {member) 1 2
C Hayes Chair (Appointed 8.7.20) 1 2
S Elwine {member & director) 2 2
E Klein {[member} 1 2
L Conod {member) Yice Chair 0 2
H Patterson 2 2
M Ascheroft 2 2
R Weodcock {Resigned 19.6.20} 0 1
M Wiliams 2 2
R Williams (Appuinted 30.3.20) 2 2

In addition to this, the Local Advisory Body of the individual schools meet termly. However, during 19/20, only the
Autumn Term meetings took place, due to Covid Closure.

Review of Governance 2019-2020
We welcomed 5t Weonards Academy under the umbrella of the HMFA Trust in October 2019,

A fuil review of the Induction pack, (aimed primarily at new Trustees but also as a point of reference for the full Board)
was carried out over the Summer. The Pack is now available on Governor Hub,

New Trustees carried out the NGA Skills Audit to enable us to continue to track any gaps in the Board skills set.

The arrival of Covid-19 brought many changes to the way Trustees were kept up to date with information across the
HMFA. Scheduled meetings were cancelied until further notice, and we made full use of the online 'Hub' to provide
updates. Decisfons that were normally made at meetings were instead presented to Frustees in the form of on-line
reselutions, providing the usual opportunity to express concern or to ask gquestions and confirm approval of proposals
detailed on the Huk. Members of the HWMFA were included in all correspondence to ensure that they were also aware
of everything that the Trustees, CEQ and Leadership Team were managing across the Academies.

A virtual meeting was held at the end of the summer term to bring the Acadermic year to a close and to vote in the new
Chair of Trustees following the resignation of Revd. Rab North,

Virtual meetings are likely to be the way forward during this pandemic. They, along with the Hub platform have

allowed the HMFA Board to carry out not only their core business but also encompass atl that the Covid-19 pandemic
ras brought with it.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 Ausust 2020

Finance Committee - meets once a term and is responsible for monitoring, evaluating and reviewing policy and
performance in relation to financial management, compliance with regulatory requirements and reporting, and
examining the annual budget.

As there is no need for a separate audit committee the terms of reference of the Finance committee also include
responsibility for; reviewing the risks 1o internal financial controls, reviewing the Risk Register annually, reviewing
internal audit reports.

During the year the committee reviewed Internal Audit Scrutiny, ESFA self-evaluation results, DfE Benchmarking reports,
new LGPS pension valuation, SRMA visit & report, Photocopier contracts and contributions to Central Staff Services from
associate member schoots. 1n addition to reviewing the draft annual accounts, proposed budget plans, tong-term finance
projections and reserves forecasts.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Meetings Qut of a
Trustee Attendad possifle
Prebendary R North Retired 17.7.20 1 1
P Box CEQ{Accounting Officer 1 1
5 Elwine {(Member &
Trustee) 1 1
M Williams 1 1
R Woodcock Resigned 19.6.20 1 i
N Jones Finance Director 1 1

Pay Review Committes - meets at least annually to perform all staff salary review, agree salary scales, awards &
honorarium payments, review HMFA Pay Policy,

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Committee Member Meetings Qut of a
Attended possible

Prebendary R North 1 1

F Box CEQ/ Accounting Officer 1 1

S Elwine 1 1

H Patterson 4] 1

R Woodcock {Resigned 9.6.20) 1 1

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the CED; Peter Box has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good valtie in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer's resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Directors where value for meney can be improved, including the use of
venchmarking data where available. The academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Central Staff Services

During the course of the year HMFA Trustees reviewed the proposed contribution amounts towards Central Staff services
which are provided to schools/academies via the HMFA Collaboration Agreement, The Trust needs to ensure value for
money, as well as considering compliance and improving standards in its schools. The Directors evaluated financialk risk
to each schooi/academy and took into consideration that some schools/academies within the group are under more
significant financial pressure than others, however there is an expectation that larger contributions will be received in
future years.

Staffing Review
HMFA undertook an annual review of Educational Suppart Staff hours taking into consideration flexibility within existing

staff contracts, terms of employment and pupils needs in arder to ascertain whether current staffing levels were
suitable and affordable. HMFA recognise that staffing costs contribute to 80% of total expenditure so this is monitored
and benchmarking exercises completed to ensure within appropriate levels. HMFA continue to cover staff absence where
possible from within existing contracted hours which has led to significant savings.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2070

Review of Value for Money

Broadhand Service Review

Lord Scudamore Academy's leased line cantract with BT for broadband services ended in January 2020 and a review took
ptace to determine the school's requirements, altemnative providers/services and costs. After obtaining quotes the
options were presented to the Beard for approval and the decision was made to continue the current service with BT
which meant a total contract saving of £11,100 aver the next S-year pericd. Flexibility was worked into the new
agreement to altow for upgrade to faster speed as technology and the school’s {T requirements develop.

Photocopier Contract Review

During 2020 it was necessary to undertake a review of the photocopy contracts as three of the four schools in the MAT
were approaching the end of their current contracts.

Purchasing as a group of 3 schools the Trust was in a strong position to negotiate best price, there was also the added
incentive that the 4th and largest school would likely follow suit in 2021. The Trust sought a reliable and competitive
supplier whe would be looking to build a good warking relationship with all the schools in the Trust and help streamtine
processes by managing this under one contract.

Trustees were presented with outcomes of the tender exercise and chose from 3 suitable suppliers. The approved
contract was awarded to the company who offered best price and came highly recommended by other local schaols.
The overall estimated savings across the 3 schools over the 4-year contract is £15,200.

Benchmarking
HMFA regularly undertake various benchmarking exercises using DfE toolkits in order to evaluate the financial efficiency

of the trust, it's use of funding, pupil's attainment and the money used to achieve it. Comparative trusts are selected
to provide further context. HMFA Trust regularly consider/review opportunities to self-generate income.

Procurement

Good Practice On-going scrutiny of quotes and pricing by the Finance department, ensuring best value is obtained at all
times by sourcing and suggesting atternative suppliers and alternative products where necessary, securing discounts and
group purchasing reductions. Utilising consortiums where possible 1o secure best price.

Bulk Discount Purchasing
For consecutive years we secured discounts with our high value suppliers; Staffing/HR/Payroll 5LA’s and Stationary
providers - we estimate this to have saved over £10,000 year on year.

DFE School Efficiency Metric

Results demonstrate that our schools are effectively using its funding to improve pupil's progress compared to other
simitar schoots.

Out of 10 rankings are as follows:

Lord Scudamore - 2, Sutton - Z, Kings Caple - 4

The Purpose of the System of Internal Centrol

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk t0 & reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonabie and not absclute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of charitable company policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, efiectively and economically. The
system of internal comtrol has been in place in Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies for the period
1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the Key risks to which the charitable company is exposed together with the
operating, financiat and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees
iz of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the charitable company's
significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
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Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The Risk and Control Framewark

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability, In
particular, it includes;

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periogic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

- regutar reviews by the Finance Commitiee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts
and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure prograrmmes;

- sefting targets to measure financial and other performance;

- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment} guidetines.

- delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

- identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function which was carried out using a
combination of a suitably qualified non-employed trusiee and a bought-in internal audit service to review the trust's
internal control processes and systems.

During the course of the year visits were conducted in person and remotely which included checks such as:
- Ewaluation of financial cantrol systems and testing of transactions

- Review of financial governance and oversight, IT systems and cyber security

- Risk Management:

- Review of E5FA self-evaluation

- New AFH reguirements & compliance

The findings were reported to the Board of Trustees. No matters of significance were identified.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher/CEQ has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the period in question the review has been informed by:
- the work of the Internal Reviewer, carried out as supplemental work by our external auditors;
- the work of the external auditor;
the financial management and governance self-assessment process;
the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the intemal control framework.

The Accounting Gfficer has been advised of the implications of the result of thefr review of the system of internal
control by the Audit and Finance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on "j‘;’:f’f;k‘ ....................... and signed on its
behalf by:

Ll VT S

...........................................

&
7/
i M

.............................................

Peter Box - Accounting Officer
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Herefardshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

As accounting officer of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies | have considered my responsibility to notify
the charitabte company board of trustees and the Education and Skitls Funding Agency {ESFA} of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the charitable company, under
the funding agreement in place between the charitable company and the Secretary of State for Education, As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the regquirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that | and the charitable company board of trustees are able to identify any matertal irregular or improper
use of funds by the charitable company, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditiens of funding under the
charitable company's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discoverad to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

-F

- ;'_.}
G JO
Iy - i
...... ./ #” ,?}(

FrerVa et rrurn g e s et s e nninsiasrruns
Petgr Box - Accounting Officer

P
Yol i swa e
Date: Lid ”’-f! AR

.............................................
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Trustees Responsibility Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The trustees (who act as governors of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Acadernies and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purpases of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the
financial statements in accordance with the Academizs Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generatly Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a trug and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, inciuding the
income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the trustees
are reqguired to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methads and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are also respensible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which confarm with the requirements bath of propriety and of good firancial management. They are
also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended,

In s far as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware; and
- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
infarmation and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The trustees are responsibte for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directers Report,, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors on
................. FAaaATidnd. ..., and signed on the boards behalf by:

LA o
C M Hayes - Tru
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Report of the independent Auditors o the Members of
Herefgrdshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies (the "parent charitable
company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and
notes ta the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable {aw, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and
kills Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opfnion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent charitable company's affairs as at
31 August 2020 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure,
far the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020,

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK} (15As (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibitities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our repart. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant te our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Concilusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the fotlowing matters in relation to which the 15As (UK) require s to report to
you where:
. the trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified matertal uncertainties that rmay cast
significant doubt about the group’s or the parent charitable company's ahility to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a periad of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Qther information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financiat statements does not cover the otner information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowtedge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required {0 determine whether there s a material misstaternent in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the Report of the Trustees has been preparad in accordance with applicabte legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required ta repart by exception

In the tight of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstaterments in the Report of the Trustees,
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to repert in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

yvou if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial staiements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- the trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small comparies exemption from the requirement to
prepare a Strategic Repoart or in preparing the Report of the Trustees.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees Responsibility Statement, the trustees {who are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or errar.

in preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern andg using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our respansibitities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with iSAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Councils website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of our Report of the
independent Auditors.

Use of our repart

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has heen undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ repart and for ne other purpose. Ta the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accent or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and
the charitable company's members as a body, Tor our audit work, for thfs report, or far the opinians we have formed.

e
oo P

P
Mr Kevin M Tongé%ﬂ’,’ic.& {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

2 Wyevale Business Park

Kings Acre

Hereford

Herefordshire
HR4 7B5

Mote:

The maintenance and integrity of the Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies website is the responsibility of
the trustees: the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the website.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the reguirements of the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an engagement to
obtain Uimited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Herefordshire Marches
Federation of Academies during the period 1 September 2019 to 3t August 2020 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions confarm to the authorities which govern them,

This report is made solely to Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies and the ESFA in accordance with the terns
of our engagement letter.  Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Herefordshire Marches Federation
of Academies and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a repart and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other thaa Herefordshire Marches
Federation of Academies and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies’ accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Herefordshire Marches Federation of Acadermies’
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Partizament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement i3 to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity,

A limited assurance ergagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance epgagement.  Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement inciudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
charitable company's income and expenditure,

The work undertaken ta draw our conclusions includes:

- detailed testing of a sample of items of incormne and expenditure to ensure appropriately apptied for the purpeses
intended
specific testing, on a sample basis, of system controis relevant to the above

- a general review of correspondence with the appropriate authorities regarding Academy governance matters
during the year
a general review and discussion of the Academy’s internal procedures for establishing and maintaining systems
of control and documentation regarding these matters

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent evidence from the conduct of that
audit supports the regularity conclusion.

Without qualifying our opinion, we would like to refer to the related and connected party transactions highlighted in
note 23 in the attached accounts.
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to
Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform {0 the authorities which govern them.

/;'?q, g,’%{}__’ »

Thorne Widgery Accountanc@/f
Chartered Accountants -

2 Wyevale Business Park

Kings Acre

Hereforg

Herefardshire

HR4 785
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Herefordshire Mairches Federation of
Academies

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities
{Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)
for the Year Ended 31 Ausust 2020

31.8.20 31.8.19
Restricted
Fixed Assets Restricted Total funds Total funds
General Fund Fund General Fund
Netes £ £ £ £ £

INCOME AND ENDOWBMENTS
FROM
Donations and capital grants 2 - 39,805 77,545 117,350 220,172
Transfer from bLocal Authority 24
o canversion 56,173 1,048,344 10,541 1,115,058
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's 3
educational operations - - 4. 122,389 4,122,589 3,762,420
Qther trading activities 4 375,082 375,082 454,455
Total 431,255 1,088,149 4,210,675 5,730,079 4,437,087
EXPENDITURE ON
Raising funds 261,171 - 261,171 215,135
Charitable activities
Academy’s educationat
operations 6,7 92,764 218,271 4,350,873 4,661,908 4,454,590
Transfer from Local Authority 24 - - 63,000 63,000 -
on conversion
Total 353,935 218,21 4,413,873 4,986,079 4,679,725
MET INCOME/(EXFENDITLIRE} 77,320 869,878 (203,198) 744,000 {242,638}
Transfers between funds 20 - 32,112 {32,112} -
Other recaognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial gains/losses on
defined benefit schemes - - {310,000 {310,000) (825,000)
Net movement in funds 77,320 901,990 (545,310) 434,000 (1,067,638)
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 422,878 3,824,071 {Z,091,668) 2,155,231 3,222,869
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED 500,198 4,726,011 (2,636,978) 2,589,231 2,155,231.

FORWARD

All of the charitable company's activities derive from acquisitions in the current year,

The notes form part of the financiat statements
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies (Registered number: 07578861}

Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 August 2020

31.8.20 31.8.19
Hotes L £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 13 4,726,232 3,838,736
{nvestments 14 - -

4,726,232 3,838,736
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock 1,614 795
Debtors 15 80,150 88,924
Cash at bani and in hand 828,275 786,600

940,039 876,319

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one 16
vear (280,040) (339,824)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 629,999 936,495
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LEABILITIES 5,396,231 4,375,231
PENSION LIABILITY 21 (2,767,000) (2,220,000)
NET ASSETS 2,589,231 2,155,231
FUNDS 20
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 500,198 422,878
Restricted funds:
General Annual Grant 7,098 27,846
Other DFE/YPLA Grants 69,257 51,970
Other restricted 53,627 48,516
Restricted Pension Reserve (2,767,000 (2,220,000)
DfE/YPLA capital grants 130,404 156,669
Fixed Assets on Conversion 4,506,086 3,545,329
Fixed Assets funded by GAG 80,954 69,716
Fixed Assets funded by tocal 8,567 52,307
authority

2,089,033 1,732,353
TOTAE FUNDS 2,589,231 2,155,741
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on ... e el 483580l and were

signed on its behalf by:

O

.................... e R L R

C M Hayes - Trus

The notes form part of the financial statements
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies {Registered number: 07578861}

Balance Sheet
At 31 August 2020

31.8.20 31.8.1¢%
Motes £ f
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 13 4,726,011 3,837,749
tnvestments 14 1 1
3,830,770
4,726,012
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 15 128,49 104,210
Cash at bank and in hand 745,859 738,504
874,350 842,714
CREDMTORS
Amounts falling due within one
year 16 (243,823 (305,645)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 630,527 537,069
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 5,356,539 4,374,839
PENSION LIABILITY 21 (2,767,000 (2,220,000}
NET ASSETS 2,589,539 2,154,839
FUKDS it
Unrestricted funds:
Generat fund 500,506 427,486
Restricted funds:
Generat Annual Grant 7,098 27,846
Other DFE/YPLA Grants 69,297 51,970
Other restricted 83,627 48,516
Restricted Pension Reserve (2,767,000) (2,220,000}
DfE/YPLA capital grants 130,404 156,669
Fixed Assets on Conversion 4,506,086 3,545,329
Fixed Assets funded by GAG 80,954 69,716
Fixed Assets funded by tocal 8,567 52,307
authorty
2,089,033 1,732,353
TOTAL FUNDS 2,589 539 2,154,839
r : el . w ik
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on LEM|'1{&<; ..................... and were

signed an its behalf by:

(¥ %»{?f&wﬂzkg-:

-----------------------------------------

C M Hayes - Trus

The notes form part of the financial statements
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 Ausust 2020

Notes
Cash ftows from operating activities:
Cash generated from operations 1
Interest paid

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of tangibie fixed assets
Capital grants from DFE/ESFA

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period
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31.8.20
£

{13,159)
(1,257)

{14,416}

(52,144
39,804

(12,340)

31.8.19
£

103,745
(952)

102,793

(206,727
112,336

(94,391}

8,402

778,198

786,600




Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1. RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDHTURE) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Met income/(expenditure) for the reporting peried {as per the 744,000 (241,638}
statement of financiat activities)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 211,275 203,341
Capital grants from DFE/ESFA {39,804} (112,336}
Transfer on conversion to academy {1,052,058) -
Loss on disposal of fixed assels - 1,506
Interest paid 1,257 952
Decrease/ (increase) in stock {819) {793)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 8,774 6,005
Increase/ {decrease) in creditors {59,784) 45,710
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 174 000 162,000
Het cash provided by {used in} operating activities {13,159) 103,745
2. ANALYSIS OF CHAMGES iIN RET FUNDS
At 1.9.19 Cash flow At 31.8.20
£ £ L
Net cash
Cash at bank and in hand 786,600 41,675 328,275
786,600 41,675 828,275
Total 786,600 41,675 828,275
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Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the charitable company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charittes: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102} {effective t January 2015, Financial
Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of
investments which are included at market value.

Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

Group Financial Statements

The results of Herefordshire Mairches Federation of Academies and its wholly owned subsidiary HMFA Enterprises
Ltd have been consolidated and group accounts have been presented. All transactions between the Academy and
its subsidiary have been eliminated on consolidation. A separate statement of financial activities and income and
expenditure account for the Charity itself are not presented because the Academy has taken advantage of the
exemptions afforded by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 397 of the SORP.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to
continue as a geing concern.  The Trustees make this assessment in respect of & period of one year from the
date of approval of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about
the academy trust's abitity to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The Trustees have considered the effects of Covid 19 on their financial future and are confident there will be
no significant effect on them continuing as a going concern

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgsements are caontinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions cancerning the future. The resutting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit lability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis vsing a varety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost {income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in the notes to the accounts, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at
31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at the year end. Any differences
between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amount of the pension liability.
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1,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds,
it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included tn the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis, The balance of income received
for spacific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.
Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional
entitlement to the incame and its recagnition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in fult in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the pertod is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditionat entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there s entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the charity which amounts ta a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no perfermance-related conditions),
where the receipt is probable and can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no periormance related conditions), where the
recefpt is probable and the amount cah be measured reliably.

Qther income
Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
charity has provided the goods or services.

Denated goods, facilities and services

Goods danated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale, If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities' and
the proceeds are recognised as 'Income fram other trading activities. Where it is impractical to fair value the
iterns due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are
sold. This income is recognised within Tncome from other trading activities.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be reguired in settlement and the amount of the
ohligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made
up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including suppart costs invelved in undertaking each activity,
Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute
te more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to 2 single activity are apportioned
between those activities an a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the charity's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the charity apportioned to charitable activities,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific srants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use
of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted
fixed asset fund fn the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line bases overs its expected useful life, as follows:

Long Leascheld Property - 2% Straight line
Motor Vehicles - 20% Straight Line
Fixtures and Fittings - 20% Straight line
Computer Equipment - 33.3% Sraight line
Motor vehicles - 20% Straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

Long leasehold land and buildings are subject to a 125 year lease with the local authority. Land and buildings
were vaiued by the ESFA on conversion to academy status. Depreciation on the buildings element is included
within expenditure in the SOFA in accordance with the above policies.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.  Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an abligation at the balance sheet date as a resuit of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amourt of the setilement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material, the pravision is based on the present value of those ameunts, discounted
at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight iine basis over the lease term,

Investments

The academy’s shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, HMFA Enterprises Limited, is included in the balance
sheet at the cost of the share capital owned less any impairment. There 5 no readily available market value
and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financiat instruments
The academy trust anly holds basic financial nstruments as defined in FRS 102. The financizl assets and financiat
liahilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are hasic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in the nctes to the accounts. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts
due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financiat liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured
at amartised cost as detailed in the notes to the accounts. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash
settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another
financial instrument. Amounts due to charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any
impairment.,

Taxation
The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1, Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by Chapter 3, Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
pUrpCses.

Fund acecunting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purpoeses imposed by the
Department for Education where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the Department
for Education.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (*TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘'LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TBS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees” working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrenniat valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and Uabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at teast triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions,
benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the heginning of the period by the rate used
to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the
actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses,

The annual valuation at 31 August 2020 has taken into account the effects of the McCloud judgement.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immedtately in other recognised gains and losses.

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

31.8.20 31.8.19
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds

L £ £ [
Donations - 2,529 2,529 19,990
Grants - 39,804 39,804 112,336
School Trips . 75,017 75,017 87,846
- 117,350 117,350 220,172

The comparatives include unrestricted funds of ENil, restricted fixed asset funds of £112,336 and restricted
funds of £107,836 giving a total of £220,172.

Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Capital Grants 39,804 112,336
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3. FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

31.8.20 31.8.19
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ L L £
DfE/ESFA revenue grant
General Annual Grant({GAG) - 3,215,934 3,215,934 3,044 013
Other DFE/YPLA Grants - 798,257 798,257 676,496
4,014,191 4 014,191 3,720,509
Other government grant
Other Government Grants - 59,952 99,952 41,911
Exceptional gavernment funding
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant - 3,29 3,291
Coronavirus exceptional support - 5,155 5,195
- 8,446 8,446
4,122,589 4,422,589 3,762,420

All amounts included in the comparative related to general restricted funds.

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes in
response to the coronavirus outhreak. The funding received is shown above under exceptisnal government

funding.

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £51 of cleaning and hygiene costs. These

costs are included in notes 5 and 6 below as appropriate.

The academy furtoughed some of its wrap around staff under the government's CJRS. The funding received
of £3k relates to staff costs in respect of support staff which are included within note 8 below as

appropriate.

31.8.20 31.8.19
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds

£ £ £ £
Education 3,877,857 3,877,857 3,577,359
Nursery 244,732 244,732 235,061
- 4,122,589 4,121,589 1,762 420
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4,

5.

QOTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

31.8.20 31.8.19
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds

£ 3 L £
Lettings 270 - 27 -
Recharges of staff to other organisations 72,861 - 72,861 116,566
Catering income 18,266 . 18,206 14,143
Nursery fee income 15,832 - 15,832 44 797
Other 49,015 - 49,015 85,828
HMFA Enterprises Ltd 218,338 - 218,838 193,161
375,082 - 375,082 454, 495

The comparatives include unrestricted funds of £447 4601, restricted fixed asset funds of £Mil and restricted
funds of 7,035 giving a total of £454,495.

NET INCOME FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES OF SUBSIDIARY

The academy has a wholly owned trading subsidiary, which is incorporated in the United Kingdom. The principal
activity of HMFA Enterprises is the provision of catering and outside school care and activities.

The company covenants its taxable profits to Herefordshire Marches Federation of Academies (HMFA). A surmmary
of trading results is shown below. Audited accounts are filed with the Registrar of Companies. This summary
inctudes transactions with HMFA which have been eliminated on consolidation.

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £ £ £

Turnover
Sales and services - External 178,242 193,161
Sales and services - Internal 126,663 49,411

304,905 242,572
Cost of Sales
Cost of goods sold - External {1,482) (2,857)
Cost of goods sold - Interpal - -

{1,482} {2,057)

Gross Profit 303,423 240,515
Administrative expenses
Adrninistrative expenses - External {259,689) {223,078)
Administrative expenses - Internal (14,2113 (6,808)

(273,500} {219,886)
Other income
Other income - External 20,568 -

20,568 -

MNet profit / {loss) for the year 50,091 10,629
Transfer to Hereford Marches Federation of {50,791} (11,119)
Academies
Retained profit in Subsidiary b/fwd. 392 882
Movement (700} (490)
Retained profit in Subsidiary c/fwd. {308} 392
Net assets held in Subsidiary (307} 393

e s s
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6. EXPENDITURE

31.8.20 31.8.19
Non-pay expenditure
Staff costs Premises Qther costs Total Total
£ £ L £ £
Raising Funds
HMFA Enterprises 188,444 8,897 63,830 261,171 225,135
Charitable activities
Academies educational
operations
Direct costs 2,930,914 82,081 585,830 3,008,825 3,412,087
Allocated support costs 683,693 207,350 172,040 1,063,083 1,042,503
3,803,051 298,328 821,700 4,923,079 4,679,725
Transfer from Local
Authority an conversion - 63,000 63,000 -
3,803,051 298,328 884,700 4,986,079 4,679,725

The comparatives include unrestricted funds of £400,893, restricted fixed asset funds of £215,597 and
restricted funds of £4,063,235 giving a total of £4,679,725.

Group net income/ (expenditure) is stated after charging/ {crediting):

Auditors remuneration

Auditors' remuneratian - non audit
Depreciation - owned assets
Deficit on disposal of fixed asset
Operating leases

Net income/ {expenditure) is stated after charging/ (crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration

Auditors remuneration - non audit
Depreciation - owned assets
Deficit on disposal of fixed asset
Operating leases

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
17,800 16,914
1,700 1,025
211,275 203,341
- 1,506
31,371 28,298
31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
14,450 12,075
1,700 1,025
210,529 202,191
- 1,506
31,371 28,798
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7.

CHARETABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EBUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Direct costs
Support costs

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

Analysis of resources expended by expenditure type

Education
Nursery

Education
Nursery

31.8.19 31.8.19
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ [ L £
75,839 3,522,986 3,598,825 3,412,087
16,925 1,046,158 1,063,083 1,042,5(3
92,764 4,509,144 4 661,908 4,454 590
31.8.20 31.8.19
Total Total
£ £
683,693 614,457
3,999 3,333
207,350 194,697
149,223 208,034
18,818 21 !932
1,063,083 1,042,503
31.8.20 31.3.19
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ f £ £
62,169 4,326,788 4,418,957 4,278,833
585 242 356 242,951 225,757
92,764 4,569,144 4,661,508 4,454,590
31.8.20 31.8.19
Staff Other Total Total
Costs Premises Costs Caosts Costs
E £ £ £ £
3,391,995 272 840 754,112 4,418,957 4,228,833
222,612 16,581 3,758 242,951 225,757
3,614,607 286,431 757,870 4,661,908 4,454,590
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8.

9.

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFETS

The Head Teacher and staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking
their roles of Head Teacher and Staff and not in respect of their services as Trustees.  Other Trustees did not
receive any payments, other than expenses, from the Academy in respect of their role as Trustees, The value
of Trustees' remuneration hefore deductions in the year to 31 August 2020 {or their date of resignation as
trustee) was as follows:

2020 2019
P Box Headteacher & Trustee Remuneratian £140,000 - £145,000 £150,000 - £155,000
Er Pension
Contributions £25,000 - £30,000 £20,000 - £25,000

The ahave stated figures only represent the periods for when acting as a trustee,

Trustees' expenses

There were no trustees’ expenses paid for the year ended 3t August 2020 nor for the year ended 31 August
2019,

STAFF COSTS
Group
31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Wages and salaries 2,876,719 2,723,893
Social security costs 225,668 118,508
QOperating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 645,837 479,182

3,748,234 3,421,583
Agency staff costs 54,817 41,424
Compensation payments - -

3,803,051 3,463,007
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Academy
31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Wages and salaries 2,690,215 2,583,343
Sacial security costs 124 678 217,075
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 644,897 478,727
3,559,790 3,279,145

Supply teacher costs 54,817 41,424
Compensation payments - -

3,614,607 3,320,569

The average number of persons {including senior management team) employed by the charitable company during
the year was as follows;

GROUP ACADEMY
31.8.20 31.8.19 31.8.20 31.8.19
Teachers 38 32 36 i8
Admintstration and support 110 106 84 82
Management 12 12 36 12
160 156 156 132

The number of employees whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

31.8.20 31.8.19
£140,001 - £150,000 1 1

e =

All of the above employees participated in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme.

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits {including emplayer pension contributions) received
key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £909,876 {2019 £843,520).

10,  TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accardance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and
afficers fram claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 (2019: £5,003,000) on any one claim and the cost for the year ended
31 August 2020 are included within total insurance costs.
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11. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Restricted
Fixed Assets Restricted  Total funds
General Fund Fund  General Fund
£ £ £ £
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and capital grants - 112,336 107,836 220,172
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's educational operations - - 3,762,420 3,762,410
Other trading activities 447 460 - 7,035 454,495
Total
EXPEMBITURE ON
Raizing funds 225,135 - - 225135
Charitabie activities
Academy's educational operations 175,758 215,597 4,063,235 4,454 590
400,893 215,597 4,063,235 4,679,725
NET INCOMEAEXPENDITURE) 46,567 {103,261) {185,944} (242,638)
Transfers between funds - 903,951 (90,951) -
Qther recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit schemes
- {825,000) {825,000)
Net movement in funds 46 567 (12,310) (1,101,895) (1,067,638)
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 376,311 3,836,331 {989,773) 3,222,869
TCTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 472 878 3,824,021 {2,001,668) 2,155,231
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12.  CENTRAL SERVICES

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

- Property Management

- Legal and Professional Services
- Marketing

- Administration

The trust charges for these services on a individual basis per expenses.
Most are sptit based on the following:

Lord Scudamore Primary Academy 70%
Sutton Primary Academy 20%
Kings Caple Academy 6%
St Weonards 4%

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

31.8.20 31.8.19

£G00's £000's
tord Scudamore Primary Academy 26 25
Sutton Primary Academy 12 g
Kings Caple Academy 7 4
St Weonards 7 -
52 37
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13,  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - GROUP

Freehold Fixtures and
property Lang fittings
leasehold
£ £ £
COST
At 1 September 2019 1,560,482 2,114,725 778,215
Additions - 11,950 7,498
Transfer on conversion - 1,027,620 12,603
At 31 August 2020 1,960,482 3,154,295 798,316
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2019 728,037 238,684 603,829
Charge for year 27,743 54,339 62,763
At 31 August 2020 755,780 343,023 666,592
MET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2020 1,704,702 2,811,272 131,724
At 31 August 2019 1,732,445 1,826,014 174,386
Computer
Motor vehicies equipment Totals
£ £ £
COST
At 1 September 2019 70,176 271,371 5,194 969
Additions - 32,696 52,144
Transfer on conversian - 6,404 5,046,627
At 31 August 2020 70,176 310,471 6,293,740
DEPRECIATION
At 1 Septemnber 2019 53,511 182,172 1,356,233
{harge for year 3,999 62,431 211,275
At 31 August 2020 57,510 244,603 1,567,508
MET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2020 12,666 65,368 4,726,231
At 31 August 2019 16,665 89,199 3,838,736

inchuded in cost or valuation of land and buildings is freehold land of £923,057 (2019 - £923,057) which is not
depreciated.
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13,  TAMGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - ACADEMY

Fixtures
Freehold Long and
property leasehold fittings
£ £ L
COsT
At 1 September 2019 1,960,482 2,114,725 776,013
Additions - 11,950 7,498
Transfer on conversion - 1,027,620 12,603
At 31 August 2020 1,960,482 3,154,295 796,114
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2019 128,037 238,684 601,883
Charge for year 27,743 54,339 62,507
At 31 August 2020 255,780 343,023 a64, 390
NET BOOK VALLIE
At 31 August 2020 1,704,702 2,811,272 131,724
At 31 August 2019 1,732,445 1,826,041 174,130
Motor Computer
vehicles equipment Totals
£ £ £

COST
At 1 September 2019 70,176 265,711 5,187,107
Additions - 32,696 52,144
Transfer on conversion - 6,404 1,046,627
At 31 August 2020 70,176 304,811 6,285,878
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2019 53,511 177,223 1,349,338
Charge for year 3,999 61,941 210,529
AL 31 August 2020 57,510 239,164 1,559,867
NET BOOK VALLE
At 31 August 2020 12,666 65,647 4,726,011
At 31 August 2019 16,665 88,488 3,837,769

Included in cost or valuation of land and buildings is freehold land of £923,057 (2619 - £923,057) which is not
depreciated.
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14.

15.

FIXEE ASSEY INVESTMENTS - ACAREMY

Shares in
group
undertakings
L
MARKET VALUE

At 1 September 2019 and 31 August 2020 1

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2020 1
At 31 Aygust 2019 1

There were no investment assets outside the UK.
The company's investments at the balance sheet date in the share capital of companies include the following:

HMFA Enterprises Limited
Nature of business: Provision of catering and extended school services

%
Class of share; holding
Ordinary 100
31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Aggregate capital and reserves (307 393
Profit for the year 50,091 10,629

The Academy's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, HMFA Enterprises Limited (company number
(9242303} is included in the batance sheet at the cost of the share capital owned. There is no readily available
market vaiue and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group Academy
31.8.20 31.8.19 31.8.20 31.8.1%
L £ 3 E
Trade debtors 16,716 10,651 9,242 10,363
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 50,790 11,149
VAT 19,629 37,608 25,122 43,495
Prepayments and accrued income 43,805 40,665 43,337 39,233

80,150 28,914 128,491 104,210
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16.  CREDITORS: AMOLNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group Academy
31.8.20 31,8.19 31.8.20  31.8.19
£ L 3 £
Trade creditors 14,653 98,953 13,832 100,116
Social Security and other taxes 56,777 35,132 54,078 53,434
Other creditors 71,567 96,903 71,9567 56,903
Deferred income 97,724 11,507 73,567 83,783
Accrued expenses 39,319 27,329 28,779 11,409
280,040 339,824 743,823 305,645
DEFERRED INCOME
31.8.20 31.8.19
Academy £ £
Deferred Income at 1 September 83,783 88,649
Resources deferred in the year 75,967 83,783
Amounts released from previous years (83,783) {88,64%)
Deferred Income at 31 August 75,567 83,783
311.8.20 31.8.19
Group £ £
Deferred Income at 1 September 101,507 105,970
Resources deferred in the year 97,724 101,507
Amounts released from previous years {101,507} {105,970)
Deferred Income at 31 August 97,724 101,507
Deferred income is made up of the following balances:
31.8.20 31.8.1%
£74.176 £75,584 Universal Infant Free School Meals Revenue Income
- £6,36? Rates Relief Funding income
£1,386 £1,254 Inctusion grant
£5 £583 School meal
£75,567 £83,783
Graup
£22 157 £17,724 Children’s Club income
£97,724 £101,507
17. LEASING AGREEMENTS
Mirirnum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:
31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Within one year 15,389 7,581
Between one and five years 8,442 4,123
24,331 11,704

18.  MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the campany in the event
of it being wound up while he/she is a3 member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases

to be a member.
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9.

20,

AHALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

.80
Restricted
Fixed Asseis Restricted  Total funds
General Fund Fund  General Fund
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets FER 4,726,011 - 4,726,232
Investments - - - -
Current assets 499 977 - 410,062 910,039
Current liahilities - - {280,040 (280,040)
Pension liability - - {2,767.000) (2,767,000
500,198 4,726,011 {2,636,978) (2,589,231}
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
31.8.19
Restricted
Fixed Assets Restricted  Total funds
General Fund Fund General Fund
£ L £ £
Fixed assets 67 3,837,769 - 3,838,736
Investrments - - - -
Current assets 464,669 {13,748} 425,398 876,319
Current liabilities {42,758) - {297,066) (339,824)
Pension {fability - - (2,220,000 (2,220,000
422,878 3,824,021 (7,091,668) 2,155,231
MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Net mavement Transfers
AL 1.9.19 in funds between funds At 31.8.20
£ E L £
Unrestricted funds
General fund 423,878 77,320 - 500,198
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 27,846 (1,961) (18,787) 7,098
Other DfESYPLA Grants 51,970 30,652 (13,325} 69,297
Other restricted 48,516 5,111 - 53,627
Restricted Pension Reserve (2,220,000} (547,000) (2,767,000)
DFE/YPLA capital grants 156,669 {16,265) - 130,404
Fixed Assets on Conversion 3,545,329 960,757 - 4,506,086
Fixed Assets funded by GAG 69,716 (20,874} 32,112 30,974
Fixed Assets funded by local authority 52,307 (43,740) - 8,567
1,732,353 356,680 2,089,033
TOTAL FUNDS 2,155,231 434,000 2,589,231
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20, MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

31.8.20
tncoming Resources Gains and  Movement in
resources expendead losses funds

L L £ L
Unrestricted funds
General fund 431,255 {353,935) 77,320
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 3,215,931 {3,217,892) - (1,961}
Other DFE/YPLA Grants 806,371 {775,719} - 30,652
Other restricted 188,373 {183,262} - 5,111
DFE/YPLA capital grants 39,804 (66,069 - {26,265}
Fixed Assets funded by GAG - {20,874) - {20,874y
Restricted Pension Reserve - {237,000) {310,000) {547,000)
fixed Assets on Conversion 1,048,345 (87,588) - 960,757
Fixed Assets funded by local authority - (43,740) {43,740
5,298,824 (4,632,144} {310,000} 156,680
TOTAL FUNDS 5,730,079 {4,986,079) {310,000) 434,000
Comparatives for movement in funds
Net movement Transfers
At 1.9.18 in funds bhetween funds At 31.8.19
L [ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General fund 376,311 46,567 - 422,878
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 167,586 {48,789) {90,951} 27,846
Other DFE/YPLA Grants 22,069 29,901 - 51,970
Other restricted 53,572 {5,056} - 48 516
Restricted Pension Reserve {1,233,000) (987,000) - (2,220,000}
DfE/YPLA capital grants 113,992 2%,294 13,383 156,669
Fixed Assets on Conversion 3,608,092 {62,763) - 3,545,329
Fixed Assets funded by GAG 15,050 {23,890) 78,556 65,716
Fixed Assets funded by lacal authority 99,197 {45,902) {988) 52,307
2,846,558 {1,114,205) - 1,732,353
TOTAL FUNDS 3,222,869 (1,067,638} . 2,155,231
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20. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Comparative net movement in furids, included in the above are as follows:

31.8.19
Incoming Resources Gains and  Movement in
resources expended losses funds
£ t £ L
Unrestricted funds
General fund 447,460 {400,293) - 46,567
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 3,044,015 (3,092 ,804) - {48,739)
Other DFE/YPLA Grants 676,496 {646,595} - 29,901
Other restricted 156,780 {161,836} - (5,056)
DIE/YPLA capital grants 112,336 {83,042) - 29,294
Fixed Assets funded by GAG - (23,890) . (23.890)
Restricted Pension Reserve - (162,000 {825,000) {987.000)
Fixed Assets on Conversion - (62,763) - (62,763}
Fixed Assets funded by local authority - (45,902) - (45,902}
3,989,627 (4,278,832) (825,000} (1,114,205}
TOTAL FUNDS 4,437,087 (4,679 725} (825,000} {1,067,638)
A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows:
Net movement Transfers
At 1.9.18 in funds between funds AL 31.8.20
£ £ £ 3
Unrestricted funds
General fund 376,311 123,887 - 500,198
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 167,586 (56,750 {109,738) 7,098
Other DIE/YPLA Grants 22,069 60,553 (13,325) 69,297
Other restricted 53,572 55 - 53,627
Restricted Pension Reserve 1,233,000} {1,534,000} - (2,767,000)
DIE/YPLA capital grants 113,992 3,029 13,383 130,404
Fixed Assets on Conversion 3,608,092 897,994 . 4,506,086
Fixed Assets funded by GAG 15,050 (44,764) 110,668 80,954
Fixed Assets funded by local authority 99,197 {8%,642) (988) 8,567
2,846,558 (757,323) . 2,089,033
TOTAL FUNDS 3,222,869 {633,638} - 2,589,231
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20.

MOYEMENT N FUNDS - continued

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined net movement in funds, included in the above are
as follows:

Incoming Resources Cains and  Movement in
resources expended losses funds
£ L £ L

Unrestricted funds
General fund B78,715 (754,828) - 123,887
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 6,259,946 {h,310,6946) - {50,750)
QOther DFfE/YPLA Grants 1,482,867 {1,422,314) - 60,553
Other restricted 345,153 {345,098) - 55
DfE/YPLA capital grants 152,140 (149,111) - 3,029
Fixed Assets on Conversion 1,048,345 {150,351) - 897,994
Fixed Assets funded by local authority - (89,642) - (89,642)
Restricted Pension Reserve - (359,000} (1,135,000) (1,534,000
Fixed Assets funded by GAG - {44,764} - (44,764}

9,288,451 (8,910,976} (1,135,000} (757,525)
TOTAL FUHDS 10,167,166 {9,665,804) {1,135,000) {633,638)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normal running costs of the Academy,
including education and suppart costs.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amagunt of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Other DFE/YPLA Grants - Other grant income from the ESFA, which are used for the purpaoses intended.
Other Restricted - This fund includes income for Academy trips etc,
Restricted Pensign Fund

Pansion reserve - This represents the Academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
DFE/YPLA Capital Grants - These funds were received for direct expenditure on fixed asset projects. The
balance at the year-end represents the NBY of assets and any unspent grant amounts.

Fixed Assets on Conversion - This represents the buildings and equipment donated to the school from the Local
Authority on conversion to an Academy.

Fixed Assets funded by GAG - This represents capital expenditure that has been paid out of General Grant
income.

Unrestricted Funds
Unrestricted funds consist of the reserves of the subsidiary and income and expenditure allocated for general
use in the Academy.

31.8.20 31.8.19

£ L

Unresiricted fund of HMFA 500,506 472,486
Reserves of HMFA Enterprises Ltd (308} B 392
500,198 422,878
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2. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Total funds analysed by acaderny:

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:
Lord Scudamore Academy

Sutton Primary Academy

Kings Caple Academy

St Weonards Academy

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund
Pension reserve

Total

Reserves of subsidiary

Total

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
710,783 638,006
(69,789) (40,309}
(59,828) (46,879)
49,360 -
630,526 550,818
4,726,013 3,824,021
(2,767,000) (2,220,000}
2,589,539 2,154,839
(308) 392
2,589,231 2,155,231

Sutton Primary Academy is carrying a net deficit of £69,789 on these funds. The trust is taking the following

action to return the academy to surplus:

- Careful budget monitoring and review of ongoing salary and other costs for the future.

Kings Caple Academy is carrying a net deficit of £59,828 on these funds.

action to return the academy to surplus:

- Careful budget monitoring and review of ongoing costs and other costs for the future,

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

The trust is taking the following

31.8.20 31.8.19
Teaching Other Educational Other Total Total
And Support Supplies Costs
Educational Staff {excluding}
Support Costs Depreciation
Staff
Costs
£ £ £ L £ f
tord Scudamore 1,989,080 499,133 136,238 344,201 2,968,652 3,195,144
Acadermy
Sutton Primary 580,239 97,836 44,061 221,022 943,158 804,313
Academy
Kings Caple 204,236 54,040 15,868 71,716 345,410 300,847
Academy
5t Weonards 157,309 32,684 16,630 86,890 793,513 -
Academy
2,930,914 683,693 212,797 723,829 4,501,233 4,300,304

Transfers between funds

Atransfer between general restricted and restricted fixed asset funds has been made during the year for fixed

assets which have heen funded by revenue funds.
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21.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TP5} for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Council, Both are muiti-employer defined
berefit schemes,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

Contributions ameunting to £71,383 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019 £56,843) and are
included within ather creditors.

Teachers' pension scheme

introduction

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, gaverned by the
Teachers Pension 5cheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the aption to opt-out of the TPS following enroiment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme ta which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Excheguer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid
by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the teachers’ pension scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations
are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factars. The
tatest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published
by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subseguent
consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay {including a 0.08% employer administration
charge (currently 14.1%)}

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective daie of £218,100 millien, and notional assets [estimated future contributions tegether with
the notional investments held at the valuation date} of £196,10600 million giving a notional past service
deficit of £22,000 mitlion

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate
is 2.4% above the rate of CPl. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed norninal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 Aprit 2023,

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £399,724 (2019: [266,930),

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set aut in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scherme, The trust has accounted

for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above
the information avaitable on the scheme.
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I,

PEMSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £302,305 (2019: £266,851}, of which
employer’s contributions totailed £244,988 (2019: £210,700) and employees’ contributions totalled £57,317
{2019: £56,151). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.2 per cent for employers and between
3.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme Uabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

The annual valuation at 31 August 2020 has taken into account the effects of the McCloud judgement.

As the scheme is in deficit, the school has entered into an agreement with the trustees to make additional
contributions in addition to normal funding levels.

The rates payable over a three year period will be the Future Service Rate of 18.2% of payroll plus phased lump
sum deficit contributions starting at £$9,500 for the year 2020/21 increasing by approximately 4% per annum.
The rate payabie from 1 April 2023 will be further revised following the valuation of the Pension Fund which
wilt take place on 31 March 2022.

The current estimated recovery period is 7 years.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows!
Defined benefit pension plans

31.8.20 31.8.1¢9

£ L
Present value of funded obligations {5,450,000) (4,517,000}
Fair value of plan assets 2,683,000 2,297,000

(2,767,000  (2,220,000)

Deficit (2,767,000)  (2,220,000)

Liabitity (2,767,000)  {2,220,000)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ L

Current service cost 376,000 285,000
Net interest from net defined benefit
asset/liability 39,000 32,000
Past service cost - 52,000
Adrministration expenses 4,000 4,000

419,000 373,000
Actual return on plan assets 53,000 88,000
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1.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defired benefit
pension plans

31,8.20 31.8.19
£ f
Opening defined benefit obligation 4,547,000 3,070,000
Current service cost 376,000 285,000
Past service cost - 52,000
Contributions by scheme participants 57,000 56,000
Interest cost 83,000 89,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) 319,000 856,000
Benefits paid 35,000 109,000
Business combinations 63,000 -

5,450,000 4,517,000

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ 3
Opening fair value of scheme assets 2,297,000 1,837,000
Contributicns by employer 245,000 211,000
Contributions by scheme participants 57,000 56,000
Expected return 44,000 57,000
Actuarial gains/ flosses) 9,000 31,000
Benefits paid 35,000 109,000
Administration expenses {4,000} {4,000)

2,683,000 2,297,00G

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows;

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.20 31.8.19
£ £
Actuarial gains/{losses) (310,000) (825,000)
(310,000} (825,000)

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans

31.8.20 31.8.19
Equities 65.90% 70.90%
Government bonds 6.70% 7.50%
{Other Bonds 5.30% 5.00%
Cash/liquidity 4.20% 2.90%
Other 12.50% 7.70%
Property 5.40% 6.00%

100, 00% 100.00%
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21.

22,

23,

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date {expressed as weighted averages):

31.8.20 31.8.19
Discount rate 1.80% 1.80%
Future salary increases 3.80% 3.50%
Future pension increases 2.40% 2.10%
tinflation assumption (CP1) 2.30% 2.00%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

31.8.20 31.8.19
Retiring today
Males 22.6 22.8
Females 25 25.8
Retiring in 20 years
Males 242 5.1
Females 27 8.2
Sensitivity Analysis
31.8.20 31.8.1%
£000 £000
Central },767 2,220
Sensitivity 1 (discount rate +0.1%) 2,645 2,114
Sensitivity 2 (inflation +0.1%) 2,893 2,328
Sensitivity 3 (pay growth +0.1%) 2,786 2,240
Sensitivity 4 (1 year increase in life expectancy) 2,972 2,301

The Academy expects to contribute £274,000 (201%/20: £212,000) to its Defined benefit pension scheme in
2020/21.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were ng contingent liahilities at the year end.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the compasition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees
have an interest. The follawing related party transactions ook place in the financial period.

HMFA Enterprises Ltd - wholly owned subsidiary of Hereford Marches Federation of Academigs(HMIA}

During the year HMFA made payments to HMFA Enterprises of £106,633 (2019: £49,411) for supply of catering
services and £20,028 (2019: £14,248) for the recharge of staff costs. Income was received from HMFA
Enterprises Ltd of £4,000 {201%: £4,000) for rental of premises and £10,221(2019: £4,602) in relation to
recharged costs.

At the year end £120 {2019: £1,305 due to) was due from HMFA Enterprises Ltd.

The catering SLA with HMFA Enterprises Ltd commenced an 1 March 2019 and therefore was not reguired to
be disclosed to the ESFA under the Academies Financial Handbook regulations for 2018/19.

HMFA Enterprises Ltd covenanted £50,791 (2019: £11,119) of its profits to HMFA, all of which was due to the
academy at the year end.

Page 50



Herefordshire Marches Federation of

Academies

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

23,

24,

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {CONTINUED)

Transactions with wider federation academies/schools

During the year transactions have been made between Herefordshire Marches federation of Academies and
academies/schogl included within its wider federation. All these transactions related to recharge of
expendifure across the federation.

income Expenditure Balance outsianding
at year end
{anon Pyon CE Academy £38,160 £9,904 L3t7
(2019; £41,576) (2019: £3,173) {2019: LHil)
Lizngrove CE Academy £31,538 ENil £187
{2019: L28,787) (2019: ENil} (2019: £1,40%)
Marden Primary Acadermy £13,044 £22,919 £734
{2019: £8,798) (2019: £Hil} (2019: £2,069)
St Weonards Primary School EN/A EN7A ENVA
{2019: £30,100) (2019: £Nil) (2019: £673)
Pencombe ¢ of E Primary School £11,555 ENil £533
{2019; £8,455) (2019; ENil) (2019: L774)
Clehonger C of E Primary School £31,531 ENil £4,287
(2019: £26,324) {2019 ENIDY (2019: £348)

During the year the academy has not complied with the related party reporting as set out in the Acadermies
financial Handbook.

CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY

On 1 October 2020 St Wecnards Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010
and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to the Herefordshire Marches Federation of
Academies from the Herefordshire Local Authority for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations
- transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiabie assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis
of their recogniticn in the SOFA.

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset
Funds General Funds Funds Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
- Leasebotd land and buildings - - 1,027,620 1,027,620
- Other tangible fixed assets - - 19,007 19,007
Budget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds 56,173 10,541 1,717 68,431
LGPS pension surplus / {deficit} - (63,000} - (63,000}
Net assets / (liahilities) 56,173 (52,459) 1,048,344 1,052,058
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